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REPORT AND RECOMMENDATION

Basis for Hearing:

In a Notice of Opportunity for Hearing dated (“Notice”), the State Medical Board of Ohio
(“Board”) notified Aaron Goldfein, M.D., that it intended to determine whether to limit, refuse to
grant or register, or otherwise take action against his pending application for a license to practice
medicine and surgery in Ohio. The Board based its proposed action on allegations that Dr.
Goldfein submitted a licensure application in May 2021; that in March 2017 he had pleaded
guilty to conspiracy to commit health care fraud and wire fraud, a felony; that in February 2010
the Michigan Board of Medicine (“Michigan Board”) adopted a Consent Order and Stipulation
(2010 Michigan Order”’) which placed him on probation for one year for his prescribing of
Oxycontin; that in March 2014 the New York State Board of Professional Medical Conduct
(“New York Board”) adopted a Modification Order (“2014 New York Order”), based on the
2010 Michigan Order, which allowed him to surrender his license; and in May 2017 the
Michigan Board issued a Consent Order and Stipulation (“2017 Michigan Order”), based on Dr.
Goldfein’s guilty plea, which suspended his license to practice for two years.

The Board further alleged that Dr. Goldfein’s guilty plea constitutes “[a] plea of guilty to, a
judicial finding of guilt of, or a judicial finding of eligibility for intervention in lieu of conviction
for, a felony,” as that clause is used in Ohio Revised Code Section (“R.C.”) 4731.22(B)(9). The
Board further alleged that the 2010 Michigan Order, 2014 New York Order, and 2017 Michigan
Order, individually, constitute “[a]ny of the following actions taken by an agency responsible for
authorizing, certifying, or regulating an individual to practice a health care occupation or provide
health care services in this state or another jurisdiction, for any reason other than the nonpayment
of fees: the limitation, revocation, or suspension of an individual's license to practice; acceptance
of an individual's license surrender; denial of a license; refusal to renew or reinstate a license;
imposition of probation; or issuance of an order of censure or other reprimand,” as that clause is
used in R.C. 4731.22(B)(22).

Accordingly, the Board advised Dr. Goldfein of his right to request a hearing and received his
written request on October 3, 2021. (State’s Exhibit (“St. Ex.”) 1)
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Appearances:

Dave Yost, Attorney General of Ohio, and Brandon Puckett, Assistant Attorney General, for the
State of Ohio. Levi Tkach, Esq., on behalf of Dr. Goldfein.

Hearing Date: November 30, 2021

PROCEDURAL MATTER
1.  With the agreement of the parties, this hearing was conducted virtually via GoToWebinar.

2. The record was held open until January 14, 2022, to allow Respondent to provide
documentation of journal articles he has read or continuing medical education courses he
has completed. No documents were provided, and the record was closed on January 14,
2022.

SUMMARY OF THE EVIDENCE

All exhibits and the transcript of testimony, even if not specifically mentioned, were thoroughly
reviewed and considered by the Hearing Examiner prior to preparing this Report and
Recommendation.

Background

1. Aaron Goldfein, M.D., earned his medical doctorate from the Autonomous University of
Guadalajara in 1993. He then spent one year in the clinical fifth pathway program at New
York Medical College. From 1996 to 1997, he participated in a surgical internship with the
Western Reserve Care System in Youngstown, Ohio. From 1997 to 1998 he was an
anesthesia resident in Tucson, Arizona, with the University of Arizona. He then returned to
Ohio and spent another year of anesthesia residency with the Meridian Health System in
Cleveland, Ohio, followed by a year residency with the Cleveland Clinic Foundation. From
2000-2003, Dr. Goldfein worked as an anesthesia resident at Ruby Memorial Hospital in
Morgantown, West Virginia. (Transcript (“Tr.”) at 44-46); Respondent’s Exhibit (“Resp. Ex.”)
A)

2. In 2004, Dr. Goldfein moved to Michigan to practice at Tri City Medical Centers, P.C., (“Tri
City”) and Friendly Home Care Services. He testified that Tri City was a home care practice
and that he had not worked in the home care setting prior to taking the job. (Tr. at 46-47; Resp.
Ex. A) In 2007, Dr. Goldfein purchased Tri City. (Tr. at 48) Dr. Goldfein testified that, after
he purchased Tri City, he employed three to four physicians at a time. (Tr. at 51-52) When Tri
City was solely a home care practice, Dr. Goldfein saw approximately eight to twelve patients
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a day, and his patient population consisted of mostly geriatric patients or patients with mental
health issues. (Tr.at 113, 115) He worked to grow the practice and started a research
department for phase 3 pharmaceutical testing in 2008. In 2012, Dr. Goldfein purchased a
building in a Swartz Creek, Michigan, with plans to develop an office-based practice there. As
that practice grew, his time there increased to three or four days a week. He also purchased
surgical equipment, such as an anesthesia machine, and diagnostic equipment for that office
and hoped to open a colonoscopy suite. (Tr. at 110-112) On the days he was not working at
the Swartz Creek office, Dr. Goldfein would review charts, home care orders, research
documents, and other documents he needed to review and sign. (Tr. at 120) Dr. Goldfein
closed Tri City in December 2013 after the FBI came to the office. (Tr. at 125)

3. Dr. Goldfein holds a license to practice medicine in Michigan which is currently suspended.
He previously held a New York license but never practiced there. As of the hearing, Dr.
Goldfein was unemployed. (Tr. at 20-21; St. Ex. 4; Resp. Ex. A)

4. InMay 2021, Dr. Goldfein filed for an application to practice medicine and surgery in Ohio.
(Tr. at 128)

2010 Michigan Order

5. On February 5, 2010, the Michigan Board issued the 2010 Michigan Order. In the order, Dr.

Goldfein did not make any admissions but agreed that the Michigan Board could treat as true
the allegations in a March 3, 2009 complaint. (St. Ex. 2) The complaint alleged the following
actions by Dr. Goldfein:

6. On November 21, 2008, Complainant began an investigation into the
dispensing practices of Your Tele Pharmacy in Dearborn, Michigan, based on a
Michigan Automated Prescription Service report that indicated that 143
prescriptions for OxyContin 80 mg were dispensed for the period of March 7,
2008, to March 31, 2008, and that Respondent had written half the
prescriptions.

7. Complainant’s subsequent investigation into the matter revealed the following:

a. Between April 2, 2008, and October 31, 2008, 73% of OxyContin
prescriptions filled at the pharmacy were written by Respondent.
Respondent wrote multiple OxyContin prescriptions for several patients on
the same day;

b. According to the pharmacy’s physician utilization report, between June 1,
2008, and July 30, 2008, Respondent prescribed 16,077 tablets of
OxyContin 80mg;

c. OnJuly 18, 2008, Respondent prescribed OxyContin 80 mg for patients
L.Y. and N.A. (initials are used throughout to protect patient privacy.)
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Subsequent examination of these patients’ medical records revealed that
Respondent wrote these prescriptions prior to his first examination of the
patients;

d. OnJuly 18, 2008, Respondent prescribed OxyContin 80 mg for patient
M.C. The patient was initially examined on May 6, 2008, and complained
of hip pain. Respondent prescribed the medication despite patient M.C.’s
failure to obtain a cat scan. Further, Respondent failed to prescribe any
other medications to alleviate this patient’s pain prior to prescribing
OxyContin 80 mg;

e. On September 24, 2008, Respondent prescribed OxyContin 80 mg for
patient H.W. Respondent confirmed that the patient was initially examined
over three months prior and that the patient’s medical record lacked clinical
evidence to support the use of the medication.

8. On November 20, 2008, during an interview with Complainant’s investigator,
Respondent indicated that he advises his patients to fill their prescriptions at
Your Tele Pharmacy.

(St. Ex. 4 at 2-3)

The complaint further alleged that these actions demonstrated negligence or failure to exercise
due care, a lack of good moral character, and obtaining or possessing a controlled substance or
drug without lawful authority, or attempting to do so, and/or selling, prescribing giving away,
or administering drugs for other than lawful diagnostic or therapeutic purposes. (St. Ex. 4 at 3-
4)

6.  Inthe 2010 Michigan Order, the following factors were noted to have been considered:

During a compliance conference held in the matter, Respondent indicated that he
was not aware of the high potential for abuse for the medications he was
prescribing. Respondent indicated that he has changed his prescribing practices
and more actively screens patients for whom he prescribes narcotic medications.
Further, Respondent indicated that he has significantly reduced the number of
patients to whom he prescribes narcotics.

(St. Ex. 2 at 5)

7. The 2010 Michigan Order placed Dr. Goldfein on probation for one year and required that he
successfully complete continuing education courses on pain management and prescription drug
addiction in patients. Dr. Goldfein was also fined $1,000.00. (St. Ex. 2 at 2-3)
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2014 New York Order

8.

On March 21, 2014, the New York Board adopted the 2014 New York Order which modified
an April 2011 order. (St. Ex. 3) In the original order, Dr. Goldfein did not contest allegations
which included the 2010 Michigan Order as well as a March 10, 2010 Consent Order he
entered into with the Michigan Board of Pharmacy regarding the prescribing of OxyContin to
three patients. (St. Ex. 3 at 7, 12-13) The original New York order permanently restricted Dr.
Goldfein from prescribing controlled substances. The 2014 New York Order modified this
provision to be a surrender of Dr. Goldfein’s New York license to practice medicine. (St. Ex. 3
at 2)

Dr. Goldfein testified that, despite having a New York license, he had not really practiced in
that state. (Tr. at 21)

Criminal Conviction

10.

On March 2, 2017, Dr. Goldfein entered into a Rule 11 Plea Agreement in Case No. 13-CR-
20882, United States District Court, Eastern District of Michigan, Southern Division (‘“Plea
Agreement”). As part of the Plea Agreement, Dr. Goldfein agreed to plead guilty to one count
of conspiracy to commit health care fraud and wire fraud. (St. Ex. 5 at 1) The Plea Agreement
included the following factual basis:

The following facts are a sufficient and accurate basis for Defendant’s guilty plea:

Beginning in approximately December 2008, and continuing through
approximately December 2013, Defendant willfully conspired with others to
commit health care fraud and wire fraud, in violation of 18 U.S.C. § 1349, * * *

Defendant, a resident of Oakland County, Michigan, was a licensed physician in
the State of Michigan who was enrolled as a participating provider with
Medicare. Defendant owned and operated Tri City Medical Centers, P.C., (“Tri
City”) and purported to provide physician home visits and other services for Tri
City to Medicare beneficiaries in Michigan and referred beneficiaries to multiple
home health agencies for home health services.

Defendant, William Sokoll, M.D., William Binder, M.D., Muhammad Zafar,
Tariq Khan, Ghulam Shakir and their co-conspirators would submit or cause the
submission of false claims to Medicare by billing for physician home visits that
were provided by unlicensed physicians; billing for physician home visits that he
did not know whether they were medically necessary; and (b) billing for
physician home visits where referrals for the services were obtained through the
payment to a marketer on a per patient basis, in violation of the Anti-Kickback
Statute, 42 U.S.C. § 1320a-7b.
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11.

12.

In support of fraudulent claims to Medicare, Defendant would sign medical
documentation completed by unlicensed co-conspirators, including Sokoll, as if
he had provided physician home visit services to the beneficiaries, when he had
not. He would also sign medical documentation, including home health
prescriptions and certifications, ordering physical therapy and other services
purportedly provided to Medicare beneficiaries by Blue Water, Professional,
Agility, and other home health agencies, when, at times, the beneficiaries did not
qualify for home health care, and where referrals for the services were obtained
through the payment and promised payment on a per patient basis, in violation of
the Anti-Kickback Statute, 42 U.S.C. § 1320a-7b.

In addition, Defendant would prescribe Medicare beneficiaries medications,
including controlled substances, and allow unlicensed physicians and a physician
who did not have a DEA registration number, including Sokoll, Binder, to
prescribe beneficiaries medications, including controlled substances, under his
name and DEA registration number, when Defendant had not seen or diagnosed
the beneficiaries. Defendant would sign medical documentation completed by
other unlicensed co-conspirators as if he had examined the patient, when he had
not. Medicare Part D ultimately paid for some of these prescriptions.

The preceding statement is a summary, made for the purpose of providing the
Court with a factual basis for the Defendant’s guilty plea to the charge against
him. Defendant makes this statement knowingly and voluntarily and because he
is in fact guilty of the crime charged.

(St. Ex. 5 at 2-5)

In a Judgment in a Criminal Case filed on October 12, 2017, the court found that Dr. Goldfein
had pleaded guilty to one count of Conspiracy to Commit Health Care Fraud and Wire Fraud,
in violation of 18 U.S.C. §§ 1349, 1347, and 1343. (St. Ex. 5 at 30) Dr. Goldfein was
sentenced to 52 months imprisonment followed by two years of supervised release. (St. Ex. 5
at 31-32) Further, Dr. Goldfein was ordered to pay restitution in the amount of $1,572,743, but
that amount is owed jointly and severally with his five co-defendants. (St. Ex. 5 at 35-36) In
an Amended Judgment in a Criminal Case filed on August 5, 2020, Dr. Goldfein’s prison term
was modified to time served and the supervised release was increased to three years. (St. Ex. 5
at 38-40) After a two week quarantine, he was ordered to spend the first six months of
supervised release in his home. (St. Ex. 5 at 42) His restitution obligation was unchanged.

At hearing, Dr. Goldfein testified that he was released from prison in August 2020 and is
currently under supervised release. The conditions of his supervised release include monthly
reporting, not leaving Michigan without permission, and making restitution payments. (Tr. at
18-19) Dr. Goldfein explained that he moved the court to reconsider his sentence after he
contracted COVID in prison. (Tr. at 105) Dr. Goldfein is still under supervised release, and he
intends to ask the Court to terminate his supervised release early. (Tr. at 67-68)
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13.

14.

Dr. Goldfein testified that he does not have a formal payment plan for the restitution but that he
tries to make monthly payments of $250. In addition to these payments, he paid $600,000 after
taking out a reverse mortgage on his home, $150,000 from the sale of another property, and
several other smaller payments. He estimated he has so far paid $760,000. (Tr. at 19-20)

Dr. Goldfein testified that Dr. Sokoll had passed away while Dr. Binder and Mr. Khan were
also given prison sentences. However, Mr. Zafar and Mr. Shakir fled the country. (Tr. at 27-
28)

Dr. Goldfein’s Testimony Regarding Dr. Sokoll

15.

16.

17.

Dr. Goldfein testified that Dr. Sokoll was a physician that worked for Tri City beginning in
2005. However, Dr. Sokoll’s medical license was later suspended for five years in Michigan
for writing a prescription for nasal narcotic for a friend who then gave the medication to Dr.
Sokoll. According to Dr. Goldfein, Dr. Sokoll was also criminally prosecuted for Medicaid
fraud and spent five months in jail. After Dr. Sokoll was released from jail, Dr. Goldfein
allowed him to return to work at Tri City doing diagnostic testing and research. (Tr. at 30-31,
49, 137) Sometime later, Dr. Goldfein had Dr. Sokoll assist Dr. Goldfein’s father, a licensed
physician who suffered from Parkinson’s, on appointments with patients. His father became
mentally unable to work in the summer of 2012. However, Dr. Sokoll, without an active
license, continued to work for approximately another one year and five months without any
direct supervision from a licensed physician. (Tr. at 31-33)

When asked how he falsified claims to Medicare for work provided by unlicensed physicians
as stated in the Plea Agreement, Dr. Goldfein answered, “In my mind, the falsification of the
claims was Dr. Sokoll was seeing the patients without my direct supervision. So it was he who
saw the patients and not me and, therefore, it's false. Not that the patient didn't need care. Care
was administered, given.” (Tr. at 34)

Dr. Goldfein explained that he relied on research he did about delegation including a document
titled “Scope of Practice of Health Professionals in the State of Michigan.” (Tr. at 33; Resp.
Ex. C) He testified:

And then when my dad became too ill to work, I then had Dr. Sokoll -- I had read
some laws in the past from the Michigan State Medical Society, and I pulled
them and reviewed them again, and I saw that, yes, it says that he could -- I could
delegate tasks to a licensed or unlicensed individual.

I don't know if you've read these documents, if you've looked through them. That
was the Michigan State Medical Society document we were referring to earlier.

It said I could delegate tasks to a licensed or unlicensed individual so long as the
task was within the realm of my practice and the abilities of the person I was
delegating the task to based on their level of education, and that I should be
available via telephone, telecommunication, radio or in person.
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18.

19.

20.

However, that did not -- that was not applicable to Medicare, and I did not know
that but I -- I used that law or guideline to justify in my mind that I could have Dr.
Sokoll see patients without my direct supervision. I did review his work. And it
was wrong what I did and I take responsibility for it.

(Tr. at 33-34)

He also explained that he reviewed this document with Dr. Sokoll. (Tr. at 61) He later testified
that he believed the document contained Michigan state laws and that it was drafted by the
State of Michigan to help practitioners understand the law. (Tr. at 139-140)

At hearing, Dr. Goldfein admitted that he signed medical documentation completed by Dr.
Sokoll as if Dr. Goldfein had provided the home visit services and that he billed Medicare
and/or Medicaid as if he had provided the services. (Tr. at 39, 130) He further testified that he
reviewed Dr. Sokoll’s charts daily or every other day and that he would talk to Dr. Sokoll about
any questions he had. He believed that Dr. Sokoll was a good physician who created accurate
medical records. (Tr. at 62-63)

Dr. Goldfein testified that a licensed physician worked with Dr. Sokoll after he was
interviewed by an agent of Health and Human Services in the summer of 2013. (Tr. at 55-57)

In regard to the admission in the Plea Agreement that he falsified claims to Medicare by billing
for physician home visits when he did not know if such visits were medically necessary, Dr.
Goldfein testified, “...I would never intend to do an evaluation or give care to somebody that
wasn’t necessary.” (Tr. at 37) He further testified:

Well, I believe when we went to see patients we were seeing them for medical
purposes, not for any other reason. They needed the health care. So this statement
that "he did not know whether they were medically necessary", I suppose that
means that they might say how could he know if he wasn't the one there. Since it
was billed in my name, and another physician was seeing them, then how could
he know for sure. Of course I did review all of the work that was done when I
wasn't there.

So -- so this is -- this is their interpretation of the fact that I wasn't standing there
with him, I suppose, and that he wasn't licensed at the time. Although, he did
have an extensive amount of training, more than myself, in terms of number of
years of practice.

(Tr. at 38)

Dr. Goldfein’s Testimony Regarding Dr. Binder

21.

At hearing, Dr. Goldfein testified that Dr. Binder, a co-defendant, was a licensed physician but
did not have an active DEA certificate. (Tr. at 52) He testified:
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22.

What I did with Dr. Binder that was wrong was that I think there were a few
patients that he had that -- most of his patients I gave him were nonnarcotic
patients because he didn't have his DEA. But on some occasions he would come
to me and present me with ones that had other conditions but they also had pain-
related conditions that they needed pain medication, and I would review it.

Frequently -- he had gotten in trouble for narcotics before, and he had his DEA
taken away. Frequently I'd have discussions with him about prescribing less
because he tended towards the high end of normal. And I would tell him, no,
that's not what we're going to do, and I would write for less. But I would question
him about the patient and the pain. So even though he was disciplined, he still
tended to want to prescribe more, and I would say no, we do less. I was wrong for
that because I think I was supposed to be there to see the patient directly myself.

(Tr. at 130-131)

Dr. Goldfein admitted that, while he had previously examined many of the patients receiving
narcotic prescriptions, there were patients that he prescribed to that he had not seen. (Tr. at
131)

Dr. Goldfein’s Testimony Regarding Mr. Khan, Mr. Shakir, and Mr. Safar

23.

24.

25.

Co-defendants, Mr. Khan, Mr. Shakir, and Mr. Zafar were not physicians but owned home care
agencies. (Tr. at 53)

In regard to the language in the Plea Agreement that he billed “for physician home visits where
referrals for the serves were obtained through the payment to a marketer on a per patient basis,
in violation of the Anti-Kickback Statute,” Dr. Goldfein testified:

Not -- well, we never knew that this was occurring, so as far as -- let's see. Let me
read it again. I never -- [ never would order any care on a patient to get a
kickback for the purpose of getting a kickback. I would only order care on a
patient if they needed it. But I did receive, on a few occasions, some money, but it
was not just to order home care without the purpose of the patient needing it.

% %k %k
I violated that statute, yes, but I wouldn't order it if I didn't feel they needed it.
(Tr. at 39-40)

Dr. Goldfein testified that, while he did receive between $5,000 and $10,000 from Mr. Khan,
he would not have ordered home care services for a patient if the patient did not need such
services. (Tr. at 39-40, 53-54, 132) He further testified that he received patient referrals from
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26.

Mr. Zafar and Mr. Shakir’s marketer but denied that he ever gave them any money in
exchange. (Tr. at 133-134)

Dr. Goldfein further testified that he was not aware that any of these men were submitting false
and fraudulent claims to Medicare. (Tr. at 55)

Additional Testimony from Dr. Goldfein Regarding His Conviction

27.

28.

29.

30.

31.

Dr. Goldfein also testified that he, or his employees, only did home health visits when he
believed that there was a medical need. (Tr. at 57-58) He explained that medical need was
determined: “Well, we did the normal things which are the evaluation, the home health
evaluation, the interview that you conduct with the patient, the history and the physical
examinations. And then we -- * * * We have the records. We have all of the records. We have
x-rays, MRI reports, blood work, laboratory, everything that helps us to do our assessment.”
(Tr. at 58) He explained that most of these patients suffered from chronic conditions like
diabetes or COPD. (Tr. at 59)

Dr. Goldfein explained that the possible exclusion of Respondent’s Exhibit C as well as patient
testimony from trial influenced his decision to enter into the Plea Agreement. (Tr. at 63-64, 97-
98)

Dr. Goldfein does not regret accepting the Plea Agreement. (Tr. at 106) He testified:

I admitted [that] I was guilty. I can remember when I was in prison feeling a lot
of remorse about doing, you know, the wrong thing. I think when I was sick with
COVID it was interesting because I never really felt that bad about it but for some
reason when I had the COVID infection it seemed to sensitize me to what I had
done wrong, and I don't know why but I was -- it did affect me in some way
emotionally that I could feel, you know, I felt sad about what I had done wrong
and regret. And being there was a big lesson for me, a very big lesson for me, so.

(Tr. at 106-107)

The “Scope of Practice of Health Professionals in the State of Michigan” document is noted to
have been prepared by “Public Sector Consultants™ and has the seals of the Michigan State
Medical Society and Michigan Osteopathic Association. (Resp. Ex. C at 1) Dr. Goldfein
testified that these are respected organizations and that the presence of their seals gave him a lot
of confidence in the document. (Tr. at 145)

The “Scope of Practice of Health Professionals in the State of Michigan™ does state that a
licensed health professional may delegate selected acts, tasks, or functions to unlicensed
individuals. (Resp. Ex. C at 37) However, it also states that “the law allows a health
professional to delegate specific activities, but not a broad component of his/her scope of
practice.” (Resp. Ex. C. at 38) The document further states, “When it comes to supervision,
delegation, and scope of practice, MDs and DOs have the broadest responsibility and
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authority, but without a State of Michigan license, these and other health professionals,
regardless of their background, legally may not practice.” (Resp. Ex. C at 47)

2017 Michigan Order

32.

33.

34.

On May 17, 2017, the Michigan Board issued the 2017 Michigan Order in which Dr.
Goldfein’s Michigan medical license was suspended for a minimum of two years and he was
fined $35,000.00. (St. Ex. 7 at 6-7) The Michigan Board found the allegations in an
underlying superseding complaint to be true. While the referenced superseding complaint is
not included in the hearing record, the 2017 Michigan Order states, “Respondent is currently
awaiting sentencing in a criminal prosecution arising out of the same facts as contained in the
administrative complaint.” (St. Ex. 4 at 7)

In order to have his Michigan license reinstated, Dr. Goldfein must be able to demonstrate “(1)
good moral character; (2) the ability to practice the profession with reasonable skill and safety;
(3) satisfaction of the guidelines on reinstatement adopted by the Department; and (4) that it is
in the public interest for the license to be reinstated.” (St. Ex. 4 at 7)

At hearing, Dr. Goldfein testified that he is not attempting to reinstate his Michigan license.
(Tr. at 18) He explained that he was unable to pay the $35,000 fine and that he intended to sell
his home and return to Ohio, where he grew up. (Tr. at 21, 67-68)

Witnesses and Letters in Support

Fabio Varlese, M.D.

35.

36.

Fabio Varlese, M.D., is board certified in internal medicine and geriatric medicine, an assistant
professor at the University of Toronto, Chief of Staff and Vice President of Medical Affairs at
Runnymede Hospital, and a staff consultant at two other Toronto area hospitals. (Tr. at 73-74)
Dr. Varlese and Dr. Goldfein met when they were in their respective residency programs at the
Cleveland Clinic. (Tr. at 74) Dr. Varlese expressed thankfulness for Dr. Goldfein’s help
during that time and even said, “I would have to say that most of my training for procedures as
an internist were thanks to him.” (Tr. at 75) Since that time, they have maintained a friendship
and would discuss patients with each other. (Tr. at 78) Dr. Varlese also spoke of Dr.
Goldfein’s enthusiasm for medicine. (Tr. at 79)

Dr. Varlese is aware of Dr. Goldfein’s conviction and testified, “It was a shock to me because 1
knew him to be, you know, an incredible individual both professionally, you know, from a
human perspective and also especially from knowing the quality of his bedside manners with
patients and how compassionate and caring he was.” (Tr. at 76) He further testified that the
conviction did not change his opinion of Dr. Goldfein. (Tr. at 76)
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George Darboian

37.

38.

39.

40.

George Darboian is retired but previously owned and operated an automotive repair center.
He met Dr. Goldfein in 2005 or 2006 when Dr. Goldfein moved into a neighboring home.
(Tr. at 84) Dr. Goldfein later hired Mr. Darboian as his driver when he would be doing
visits at patients’ homes. (Tr. at 85) Mr. Darboian testified:

He would go see people at the -- in the inner city of Detroit. And it just, it took
my heart so many times to see patients with open arms to greet him, you
know, it was just unbelievable. I couldn't believe how much the patients cared
and appreciated the fact that he came. And I'm talking about days when it was 15
degrees outside and cold. I just admired him for his caring that he had for people
that really needed his care.

Sometimes it was too cold and he didn't want me to wait out in the car, so I'd go
in. As a matter of fact, I ended up sometimes sitting there and seeing the way

he would, you know, take care of the patient, and I just admired the affection
and the care he would give some of the patients. It just was amazing.

(Tr. at 85-86)

Mr. Darboian also believed that Dr. Goldfein had saved his life several times. He
explained that Dr. Goldfein recommended that he see specialists for a cornea transplant and
two stents in his heart. He also testified that he contracted COVID and that Dr. Goldfein
arranged for the local emergency department to pick Mr. Darboian up and take him to the
hospital, all while Dr. Goldfein was in Columbus, Ohio. (Tr. at 87)

Mr. Darboian testified that Dr. Goldfein’s conviction did not change his opinion of the
doctor even though he was not aware of all the details. (Tr. at 86-87) However, Mr.
Darboian stated that, if Dr. Goldfein was granted a license to practice in Ohio and Mr.
Darboian was healthy, he would likely sell his Michigan home and move to Ohio in order
to continue being Dr. Goldfein’s driver. (Tr. at 88)

Mr. Darboian also wrote a letter to the judge in Dr. Goldfein’s criminal case. (Resp. Ex. B
at 2-3)

Howard Adelson, D.O.

41.

Howard Adelson, D.O., is a Board-certified ophthalmologist and surgeon in Michigan. (Tr.
at 91) He knows Dr. Goldfein personally and has been referred a couple of patients by him
over the years. (Tr. at 91-92) He testified, “I think that [Dr. Goldfein’s] a good person.
He's an honest person. I think he cares very much about his patients' well-being. I've
experienced that somewhat firsthand. I know he's a hard worker. He's intelligent. He's
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42.

caring. I don't -- [ haven't worked with him side by side, so I can't comment on that, but in
terms of his character, I can.” (Tr. at 92) He also stated, “I sincerely believe that he does
care about his patients. And the well-being of his patients and the practice of medicine is
very important to him. And I do think that, given the chance, he would do a great job,
whether it be in Ohio or wherever he determines that he’s going to practice.” (Tr. at 93-94)

Dr. Adelson testified he was aware of Dr. Goldfein’s criminal case, though not the details,
and that it did not change his opinion of Dr. Goldfein’s character and that he would trust
Dr. Goldfein to treat one of his patients. (Tr. at 92)

Letters in Support

43. Mike Eber, JD, MPH, wrote a letter to the judge in Dr. Goldfein’s criminal case stating that

44,

45.

46.

Dr. Goldfein had volunteered at a shelter for victims of Hurricane Harvey. Mr. Eber wrote
that Dr. Goldfein handled many people suffering from chronic homelessness, mental health
issues, and illiteracy and that he did what was necessary even to the point of helping
disabled people with the bathroom and picking up soiled linen. (Resp. Ex. B at 1)

William Sokoll, M.D., wrote a letter to the Bahamas Medical Council in support of Dr.
Goldfein’s application for medical licensure there. This letter is written after Dr. Goldfein
signed the Plea Agreement but before he was sentenced, and it does not mention the
criminal case at all. Dr. Sokoll described Dr. Goldfein as a caring physician who went out
of his way to help his patients including buying them food or driving them hours to see a
specialist. (Resp. Ex. B at 4)

Kirk Gold, D.P.M., also wrote a letter to the Bahamas Medical Counsel. He wrote that Dr.
Goldfein was professional and honest in his business dealings. While there is no mention
of Dr. Goldfein’s criminal case, there is no evidence that Dr. Gold was even aware of Dr.
Goldfein’s plea agreement. He also wrote that he had heard from patients how much they
appreciated Dr. Goldfein’s care. (Resp. Ex. B at 5)

Robert Fung, Chairman and CEO of Crystallex International Corporation and board
member of Mr. Sinai Hospital as well as other institutions, wrote a letter to the judge in Dr.
Goldfein’s criminal case. He explained that Dr. Varlese introduced him to Dr. Goldfein
and that he was impressed with Dr. Goldfein’s passion for medicine and dedication to
treating those who were lower income or disadvantaged. Finally, he wrote, “Throughout
the time I have known Aaron, he has displayed to me only the highest of integrity, honesty
and morality and I write in full support of him as a person whom I hold in high regard and
whom I am happy to have as a true friend.” (Resp. Ex. B at 8-9)

Additional Testimony From Dr. Goldfein

47.

Due to his conviction, Dr. Goldfein is excluded from participating in Medicare and
Medicaid for ten years. (Tr. at 68) He explained his practice plans if granted a license in
Ohio, “I envision it as doing something on the order of men's health, most likely, is where I
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48.

49.

would see that I would most likely enter that field. And potentially auto claims, auto
accident claims, where I would evaluate patients. And I would probably do steroid
injections, joint injections, for pain. That's how I kind of envision the practice.” (Tr. at 68)
He later explained that he did not plan on starting his own practice, but would look for
work at a clinic or practice. (Tr. at 126-127)

Dr. Goldfein testified:

I guess just that I care greatly about my patients and other people, you know,
others. I've always tried to help people. Whether I got paid to help people or
not, I've always given my care. If somebody asks for my help, I always offer
my help to them. I am that kind of person. I think that's -- that's important as a
physician to care about others, to be compassionate with others, whether I
made money or not.

(Tr. at 70)

Dr. Goldfein last practiced medicine in 2017 after he entered into the Plea Agreement and
shortly before the 2017 Michigan Order. (Tr. at 123) Since that time, he has continued to
read a variety of New England Journal of Medicine articles and take continuing medical
education courses. (Tr. at 121-122, 146, 148)

FINDINGS OF FACT

In May 2021, Dr. Goldfein submitted an application to practice medicine and surgery in
Ohio, which remains pending.

On February 5, 2010, the Michigan Board adopted the 2010 Michigan Order which placed
Dr. Goldfein on probation for one year and fined him $1,000 based on a March 3, 2009
complaint. Specific allegations in the complaint included that he wrote multiple
OxyContin prescriptions to the same patients on the same day, to patients he had not seen,
and to a patient who complained of hip pain but did not obtain a cat scan. The 2010
Michigan Order included a consideration that “During a compliance conference held in the
matter, Respondent indicated that he was not aware of the high potential for abuse for the
medications he was prescribing. Respondent indicated that he has changed his prescribing
practices and more actively screens patients for whom he prescribes narcotic medications.
Further, Respondent indicated that he has significantly reduced the number of patients to
whom he prescribes narcotics.”

On March 14, 2014, the New York Board issued the New York Order that modified a
previous order and allowed Dr. Goldfein to surrender his New York license to practice
medicine and surgery. This surrender was a result of the 2010 Michigan Order.
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4.  On March 2, 2017, Dr. Goldfein entered into the Plea Agreement in which he agreed to
plead guilty to one count of Conspiracy to Commit Health Care Fraud and Wire Fraud, in
violation of 18 U.S.C. §§1349, 1343, and 1347, in the United States District Court for the
Eastern District of Michigan. The Plea Agreement stipulated that he participated in a
kickback scheme that defrauded Medicare by billing home health services for patients who
were ineligible for home health services or did not receive the services billed on their
behalf. On October 12, 2017, the Court sentenced him to 52 months in prison. On or about
August 5, 2020, the Court issued an amended judgment that allowed Dr. Goldfein to be
released on time served, with six additional months to be served on home confinement and
three years supervised release. Further, Dr. Goldfein was ordered to pay $1,572,743.00 in
restitution, jointly and severally with his co-defendants.

5. OnMay 17, 2017, the Michigan Board issued the 2017 Michigan Order that suspended Dr.
Goldfein’s license to practice in Michigan for two years and fined him $35,000.00.

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

1.  Dr. Goldfein’s acts, conduct, and/or omissions, as described in Finding of Fact 4,
individually and/or collectively, constitute “[a] plea of guilty to, a judicial finding of guilt
of, or a judicial finding of eligibility for intervention in lieu of conviction for, a felony,” as
that clause is used R.C. 4731.22(B)(9).

2. The 2010 Michigan Order, 2014 New York Order, and 2017 Michigan Order, as described
in Findings of Fact 2, 3, and 5, individually, constitute “[a]ny of the following actions taken
by an agency responsible for authorizing, certifying, or regulating an individual to practice
a health care occupation or provide health care services in this state or another jurisdiction,
for any reason other than the nonpayment of fees: the limitation, revocation, or suspension
of an individual's license to practice; acceptance of an individual's license surrender; denial
of a license; refusal to renew or reinstate a license; imposition of probation; or issuance of
an order of censure or other reprimand,” as that clause is used in R.C. 4731.22(B)(22).

3. The Board is not authorized to impose a civil penalty as Dr. Goldfein is not the “holder of a
license or certificate” as that phrase is used in R.C. 4731.225.

4.  Dr. Goldfein has pleaded guilty and been adjudicated guilty of a crime which is listed on
the Board’s Disqualifying Offense List, effective October 9, 2021, and as posted on the
Board’s website pursuant to R.C. 9.78 and 9.79'. As Dr. Goldfein is still under supervised
release, the Board is permitted to consider his crime when determining whether to grant
him a license.

! https://med.ohio.gov/The-Board/Disqualifying-Criminal-Convictions, accessed January 26, 2022
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RATIONALE FOR THE PROPOSED ORDER

Dr. Goldfein has admitted to using his Michigan medical license to conspire with others to
commit health care fraud. He did this in multiple ways although at hearing he did dispute some,
but not all, of the facts he agreed to in his plea agreement. Dr. Goldfein engaged in the following
criminal behavior: allowing a physician with a suspended license to see and treat patients while
billing as if he himself had seen and treated the patients; billing for physician home visits that he
did not know were medically necessary (though he professed a belief that the visits were
necessary); billing for physician home services where referrals for the services were obtained
through payments to a marketer; signing documentation, including prescriptions and
certifications, for physical therapy and other services provided by home health agencies when the
patients did not qualify for home care and the referral for services were obtained through
payment or promised payment on a per patient basis; allowing a physician with a suspended
license and another physician with no DEA registration number to prescribe medications under
Dr. Goldfein’s name and DEA registration number when Dr. Goldfein had not seen or diagnosed
the patients; and signing medical documentation completed by unlicensed co-conspirators as if
he had examined a patient that he had not examined.

Dr. Goldfein’s delegation to Dr. Sokoll is particularly egregious. While Dr. Goldfein testified at
hearing that he believed he could delegate to Dr. Sokoll based on his research, it seems
unreasonable to the hearing examiner that Dr. Goldfein believed he could delegate what amounts
to the practice of medicine to a physician that the State of Michigan had explicitly stopped from
practicing. Dr. Sokoll was prohibited for practicing, but Dr. Goldfein decided that it was not
practicing if he delegated his professional responsibilities to Dr. Sokoll and then reviewed the
charts. However, while an aggravating factor, the delegation is a distraction. Dr. Goldfein was
not convicted for improper delegation. He was convicted for fraudulently billing Medicare and
engaging in kickbacks for patients. Though Dr. Goldfein denies ever paying for a patient
referral, he did admit at hearing to accepting money from the owner of a home health care
agency.

Further, while Dr. Goldfein had several excellent witnesses who testified to his care and concern
for his patients, the evidence also shows a lack of concern. Dr. Goldfein allowed a suspended
physician to see and treat patients, and Dr. Goldfein issued prescriptions and orders for those
patients based on the opinion of a physician whom the State of Michigan has suspended from
practicing. Further, Dr. Goldfein issued prescriptions, including narcotic prescriptions, to
patients he had not examined, based on the opinion of a physician who had lost his DEA
registration for improperly prescribing narcotics. These actions show a lack of concern for
patients.

The hearing examiner is concerned that Dr. Goldfein does not understand what exactly was
wrong with his conduct. He also testified that he did not actually feel remorse for his conduct
until he was sick with COVID in federal prison.

The Board should consider the following factors when determining whether to issue Dr. Goldfein
a license: (a) the nature and seriousness of the offense for which Dr. Goldfein was convicted,
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found guilty pursuant to a judicial finding, or pleaded guilty; (b) the passage of time since he
committed the offense; (c) the relationship of the offense to the ability, capacity, and fitness
required to perform the duties and discharge the responsibilities of a physician; (d) any evidence
of mitigating rehabilitation or treatment undertaken by the individual, including whether the
individual has been issued a certificate of qualification for employment under section 2953.25 of
the Revised Code or a certificate of achievement and employability under section 2961.22 of the
Revised Code; and (e) whether the denial of a license is reasonably necessary to ensure public
safety.

The nature of Dr. Goldfein’s crime directly implicates his honesty, and it was only possible due
to him holding a license to practice medicine. Further, the federal district judge considered it
serious enough to sentence him to 52 months in prison, although the sentence was later amended
due to COVID. While the actual conduct involved occurred from 2008 through 2013, Dr.
Goldfein’s conviction occurred several years later, and he is still under supervised release. This
crime calls into question Dr. Goldfein’s ability, capacity, and fitness to practice medicine and
comply with minimal standard of care. This is doubtful as Dr. Goldfein allowed individuals
without active licensure or authorization to prescribed controlled substances and to essentially
determine the care and treatment of Dr. Goldfein’s patients. In so doing he relinquished his own
professional responsibility and placed it on others who were unqualified. Dr. Goldfein did not
present any evidence at the hearing that he has undertaken any mitigating rehabilitation or
treatment, nor did he present a certificate of qualification for employment or a certificate of
achievement and employability. There is no evidence that Dr. Goldfein even took a course on
ethics. Finally, denial is necessary to ensure public safety.

Nevertheless, there is testimonial evidence that Dr. Goldfein takes good care of the patients he
personally sees. While he did have an issue prescribing OxyContin to patients in 2008 which
resulted in the 2010 Michigan Order, the order also indicates that Dr. Goldfein took appropriate
action to change his prescribing practice. However, given his history, it would be problematic to
ensure that Dr. Goldfein is actually seeing the patients he is documenting himself as seeing. The
hearing examiner believes that a balancing of the factors justifies permanent denial of Dr.
Goldfein’s application. If the Board does decide to grant Dr. Goldfein a license, it should
strongly consider imposing permanent limitations such as prohibitions on owning/operating a
medical practice and on delegating tasks to anyone, licensed or unlicensed. Such prohibitions
would help protect the public.

The decision in this case hinges on whether the Board believes that it can trust Dr. Goldfein.
Trust and honestly are integral to the practice of medicine. The hearing examiner is not
convinced that Dr. Goldfein understands and appreciates what was wrong with his conduct.
Such a lack of introspection makes it more likely that dishonest conduct could happen again.

Therefore, the proposed order is to permanently deny Dr. Goldfein’s application.
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PROPOSED ORDER
It is hereby ORDERED that:

The application of Aaron Goldfein, M.D., for a license to practice medicine and surgery in
Ohio is PERMANENTLY DENIED. Pursuant to R.C. 4731.22(L), the Board will not
accept a future application for licensure from Dr. Goldfein.

This Order shall become effective immediately upon the mailing of the notification of approval

by the Board.

Kimberly A7 Lee
Hearing Examiner












STATE OF MICHIGAN
DEPARTMENT OF LICENSING AND REGULATORY AFFAIRS
BUREAU OF PROFESSIONAL LICENSING
BOARD OF MEDICINE
DISCIPLINARY SUBCOMMITTEE

In the Matter of

AARON SCOTT GOLDFEIN, M.D. Complaint No. 43-16-142324
License No. 43-01-082782 (43-13-131493 consolidated)
/ CONSENT ORDER AND STIPULATION
CONSENT ORDER

A superseding administrative complaint was filed with the Disciplinary
Subcommittee of the Board of Medicine on April 3, 2017, charging Aaron Scott
Goldfein, M.D. (Respondent) with having violated sections 16221(a), (b)), (b)(vi),
(d)(ii1), (h), and 16213(1) of the Public Health Code, 1978 PA 368, as amended, MCL
333.1101 et seq.

The parties have stipulated that the Disciplinary Subcommittee may enter
this consent order. The Disciplinary Subcommittee has reviewed the stipulation
contained in this document and agrees that the public interest is best served by
resolution of the outstanding complaints. Therefore, the Disciplinary Subcommittee
finds that the allegations of fact contained in the complaints are true and that
Respondent has violated sections 16221(a), (b)@), (b)(vi), (d)(ii), (h), and 16213(1) of
the Public Health Code.

Accordingly, for these violations, IT IS ORDERED:

Respondent’s license is SUSPENDED for a minimum period of 2 years.




Respondent is FINED $35,000 to be paid by check, money order or cashier’s
check made payable to the State of Michigan (with complaint number 43-16-142324
clearly indicated on the check or money order), and shall be payable prior to
petitioning for reinstatement. The timely payment of the fine shall be Respondent’s
responsibility. Respondent shall mail the fine to: Bureau of Professional Licensing,
Legal Affairs Division — Compliance Section, Department of Licensing and
Regulatory Affairs, P.O. Box 30189, Lansing, Michigan 48909.

A reinstatement of Respondent’s license shall not be automatic. If
Respondent petitions for reinstatement of his license, the petition shall be in
accordance with sections 16245 and 16247 of the Public Health Code and Mich
Admin Code, R 792.10711. Under these provisions, Respondent must demonstrate
the following by clear and convincing evidence: (1) good moral character; (2) the
ability to practice the profession with reasonable skill and safety; (3) satisfaction of
the guidelines on reinstatement adopted by the Department; and (4) that it is in the
public interest for the license to be reinstated.

Respondent may not file a petition for reinstatement sooner than ninety days
prior to the end of the suspension period.

Respondent is currently awaiting sentencing in a criminal prosecution
arising out of the same facts as contained in the administrative complaint. Upon
entry of Respondent’s criminally conviction, the Department will not bring a new

administrative complaint based on the conviction.




Respondent shall be 1'esp0nsible for all costs and expenses incurred in
complying with the terms and conditions of this consent order.

This order shall not be modified for any cause whatsoever.

Respondent shall be responsible for the timely compliance with the terms of
this consent order, including the timely filing of any documentation. Failure to
comply within the time limitations provided will constitute a violation of this order.

If Respondent violates any term or condition set forth in this order,
Respondent will be in violation of Mich Admin Code, R 338.1632, and section
16221(h) of the Public Health Code.

This order shall be effective on the date signed by the Chairperson of the
Disciplinary Subcommittee or the Disciplinary Subcommittee’s authorized

representative, as set forth below.

Signedon 2 /747

MICHIGAN BOARD OF MEDICINE

By % %M/

Chairpersoy, Disciplinary
Subcommittee

STIPULATION

The parties stipulate as follows:
1. The facts alleged in the complaints are true and constitute a violation of

the Public Health Code.




2. Respondent understands and intends that, by signing this stipulation, he
is waiving the right under the Public Health Code, rules promulgated under the
Public Health Code, and the Administrative Procedures Act of 1969, 1969 PA 306,
as amended, MCL 24.201 et seq., to require the Department to prove the charges set
forth in the complaint by presentation of evidence and legal authority, and to
present a defense to the charges before the Disciplinary Subcommittee or its
authorized representative. Should the Disciplinary Subcommittee reject the
proposed consent order, the parties reserve the right to proceed to hearing.

3. The Disciplinary Subcommittee may enter the above Consent Order,
supported by Board conferee Dr. Peter Graham, M.D. Dr. Graham or an attorney
from the Licensing and Regulation Division may discuss this matter with the
Disciplinary Subcommittee in order to recommend acceptance of this resolution.

By signing this stipulation, the parties confirm that they have read,

understand and agree with the terms of the consent order.

AGREED TO BY: AGREED TO BY:
["J ,,,,,,
>&,/ At / ¥ i
Brldget K. Smith (P71318) Axtrén Scott Goldfein,
Assistant Attorney General Respondent
Attorney for Complainant
Dated: __“7/15/} 7 Dated: //;L/ /7

Thomas M. Loeb (P25913)
Attorney for Respondent

Dated: 4 /ix]i7

LF: 2016-0155830-B\Goldfein, Aaron Scott, M.I}., 142324\Pleading — Consent Order — 2017-04-03
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= e e = state department of = T = :
Nirav R. Shah, M.D., MP H. HEALTH ' ~ Sue Kelly
Commissioner ‘ i ' Executive Deputy Commissioner.
Match 24, 2014

CER TIFIED MAIL-RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED :

Aaron Scott Goldfein, M.D,
REDACTED
Re: License No, 232882
Dear Dr. Goldfein:

Enclosed is a copy of the New York State Board for Professional Medical Conduct
(BPMC) Order No. 14-74. This modification order and any penalty provided therem goes into

. effect March 31, 2014,

Please direct any questions to: Board for Professional Medical Conduct, 90 Church
Street, 4th Floor, New York, NY 10007-2919, telephone # 212-417-4445.

Sincerely,

REDACTED

Katherine A. Hawkins, M.D., J D
Executive Secretary
Board for Professional Medical Conduct

Enclosure

cc: Robert S. Harrison, Esq.
Robert Harrison & Associates, P.C.
200 East Long Lake Road, Suite 110
Bloomfield Hills, MIL 48304

HEALTH.NY.GOV

facebook com/NYSDOH
wwitter.com/HealthNYGav




NEW YORK STATE  DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH BPMC No. 14-74
STATE BOARD FOR PROFESSIONAL MEDICAL CONDUCT : .

IN THE MATTER N . MODIFICATION

OF ORDER
AARON SCOTT GOLDFEIN, MD.

Upon the proposed Application for a Modification Order of AARON SCO’TT GOLDFEIN,
M.D., (Respondent), that is 'madq a part of this Modification Order, & is agreed and

ORDERED, that the attached Appilication and its terms are adopted and it is further

ORDERED, that this Modification Order shall be effeclive upon issuance by the Board,
eilher by mailing, by first class mail, a copy of the Modification Order to Respondent at the
address in the attachied Appiication or by cerlified mail lo Respondent's aliomey or upon

lransmission via facsimile ta Respondent or Respandent's atioiney, whichever is earfiest.

50 ORDERED,

REDACTED
DATED;_3/21/2014 _

ARTHUR S. HENGERER, M.D.

Chair _ .

Stale Board for Professional -
Medical Conducl

e
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' STATE OF NEW YORK : DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

"Depariment.

1 (hereinafier "Modification Order"), modifying the Original Order, as follows: to delete the

STATE BOARD FOR PROFESSIONAL MEDICAL CONDUCT

IN THE MATTER APPLICATION FOR

OF ~ MODIFICATION ORDER
AARON SCOTT GOLDFEIN, MD.

AARON SCOTT GOLDFEIN, M.D., (Respondent) belng duly swomn deposes and says:

That on or about June 18, 2004, | was licensed 1o practice meédicine in the State of New
York, having been Issued license riumber 232882 by the New York State Education

My current address is {REDACTED —

I am currently subject to BPMC Order Na. 11-85, (hereinafter “Original Order™), annexed
hereto, made a parl, hereof, and marked as Attachmenl 1, that was issued on Aprit 19, 2011, |
have paid the $2,500.00 fine discussed in Attachment | and have complied with the State of
Michigan Orders that were the basis of BPMC Order No. 11-95,

1 2pply to the State Board for Professional Medical Cenduct for 2 Modification Order

paragraphs in the Original Order that siate:

“Censure and Reprimand; _
Should Respondent return to the pradlice of medicing in the Stale of New York, he
shall permanently restricted from prescribing controlled substances.”

substituting for the above paragraphs: _

"{ (Respondent) ask the Board lo accep! surrender of my license, and | agree to be
bound by all of the terms sat forth in the attached Exhibit “8."

The Modification Order to be issued will not constitute a new disciplinary action against
me, but will substilute the proposed language for the above desecribed fanguage in the Original
Crder.

e e e

o ——— o



Ve WM

I make this Application of my‘own free will and accard and not u@der duress, compulsion
or restraint, and seek the anticipated benefit of the requested Mﬁdiﬁcat’ion. n considera{ion of

| the valus to me of the aoceptance of the Board of this Application, | knowingly waive the right to

contest the Original Order or the Modification Order for which | apply, both administratively and
judicially, and ask that the Board grant this Application. -

| understand and agree that the attornay for the éureau of Professional Medical

Board for Professional Medical Conducl each retaln complete discretion to either enter into the

| proposed Agreement and Modification Order, based upon my application, of to decline to do so.

| further understand and agree that no prior or separate written or oral communication can fmit
that discretion.

AFFIRMED:

DATED: %\'thr REDACTED _
o v ARRDN SCOTT Gdiéﬁé‘m@&

Respondent

Conduct, the Director of the Office-of Prafesslonal Mexlical Conduict, and the Chairof the State |

o ¢ tere—




The undersigned agree lo the altached Applscaban af Respondent and ta the proposed
penalty based on the ierms and conditions thereof,

onre. % >f %

DATE; 3] ‘;,

DATE: 2> L’;’QL L‘{’

REDACTED
ROBERY 5. HARRISON, Esq.

T ’“Aﬁgf“EYfDT RESpDnden T T

REDACTED

MlCHAEL G BASS
Agsisiant Counsel
- Bureau of Prolessional Medical Conduel

REDACTED

\,,Qt:kéﬁﬂ W. SERVIS
Diractor

Qffice of Professional Medical Conduct

B e e —— . duae o b
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NEW YORK STATE: DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH _
STATE BOARD FOR PROFESSIONAL MEDICAL comucr

INTHE MATTER - CONSENY
OF ORDER

AARON SCOTT GOLDFEIN, 1.0, BPMC No. 11-5

ot Uponihe app!ication of ABRON SCOTT GOLDFEIN, M.D., (Respondent), inthe altached

Consent Agreement, that is made a part of this Consent Order,; its

ORDERED thattha consent Agreement, and fis terms, ame adoptad andRis ﬁmher

' ORDERED, that this Consend Order shall be effective upon issuance by the Board,
gither by malling pf & copy of this Consent Order, either by first class mail to Respondent &t the
address 1 the zttached Consent Agreement or by cértified mall to Respondent's afiomey, or
upon facsimile or email ransmission to Respondant or Respondent's attomey, whichsver s first

SOORDERED. ; ‘. -
' f; REDACTED
owre__ 4/ /@l r REDA :
. KENDRICK A. SEARS, M.O.-
Chair |
State Board for Professional

Medical Conduct

|
- bemama e ———
1
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| STATE OF NEW YORK: DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH
STATE BOARD FOR PROFES$§0ML MEDIOAL CONDUCT

N me MATTER . CONSENT

OF S AGREEMENT
~ AARON SCOTT GOLDFEIN, I.0,
CO-10-03-1356-A

i -~ —AARON sccm' GGLDFE!N M.D., (R&spanderu), repmenﬁng that al! of the following
stalements are true, deposes and says:

That on erabout Jm}e 18, 2004. l was licensad fo practics medicing in the State of New
York and issued license number 232852 by the New York State Education Department,
My current eddress is REDACTED 1, and Vwill advise

the Director {Director) of the Offica of meessional Medical Condict (QPMC) of any chenge of
my address within thirty (30) days, thereof,

} undesstand et the New York Siate Board for Professional Medical Conduci (Board)
has charged me with four (4) Spacifications of professional misconduct,

Acopybfmas&temem&chames. marked as Exhibit A, is altached to and part of this
COnssntAgreamm?. '

ldonotuonﬁat&efaur(ﬁ&euﬁwﬁons,andagmiomafoﬂmngmﬁm

. Censurs ,Eiﬂd. Reprimend;

Should Respondent retum to the praciica of medicine In the State of New York, he shell
be permanantly restricied from prescriting cofirolled substances;

Respondent shall pay a $2,500.00 fins, to ba pald within thirly (30) deys of the efiective
dalo of the Consent Order to the NYS Department of Health, Bureau of Accounts

Maznagement, Revenue Unit, Empire State Pbaza, Coming Tower, Room 1717, Aibany.
NY 12237-0018.

Respondent shall comply fully with the Stafe of Michigan, Board of Medicine, Consent
Order, dated Februssy 5, 2010, énd the State of Michigan, Board of Pharmacy, Consent
Order, dated March 10, 2010, and any extensions or modifications thersof,

-

L % Prar—— iyt b ¥
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Miciﬂgan Orders durlng the declaraﬂon pedod spectﬁed.

'Respondent shall provide a writien authorization for the Michigan Boards to pravide

the Diractor of the Offica of Professional Medica! Conduct (OPMC) with any/all
information or documentation as requested by OPMC fo enable OPMG to determine .
whether Respondent is in compliance with the Michigan Ordars

Respondent shall submit seml-snnually a signed Compllance Declaration to the Director
of OPMC, which truthfully sttests whether Respondsnt has been in compliance with the

Should Respondent retum o the practice of medicine ln the State of New Yark o in

any jurisdiction whera that praciice is predicated upon Respondent’'s New York State
medical license, Respondent shall provide ninety {30) days ntice in writing to the
Director, OPMC, The Dlractar in his gole discreﬂan. may impose whatever limitaﬁpns. or
further conditions, he desms sppropriate, :

I agree, further, that the Gonsent Order shall imposa the following conditions:

That Respondent shall remain in continuous compliance with all requireménts of New
York Education Law § 8502 including, but not limited 1o, the requirements thit a licsnsse
shall register and continue to be registersd with the New York State Education
Department (excapt during periods of achus] suspension) and that a licensse shall pay
all regisiration fees. Respondent shall not éxercise the option provided in New York

Education Law § 6502(4) to avald regisiration and payment of fees. This eondition shall ’

taka sffect 30 days afier the effective date of the Consent Order and will continue so
long as Respondernt remains g licenses In New York State; and

That Respendent shall cooperate fully with the OPMC in its administration and
enforcament of the Consant Ordar end in its investigétions of matters conceming
Respondent. Respondem shall respond In a fimely manner to ali OPMC requests for
writien pericadic verification of Raapondent’s complance with this Consent Agresment.
Respondent shall msst with & persen designated by the Dirsctor, OPMC, as dirscted,
Respondent shall respond prompty and provida afl documents and Information within
Respondent's cantrl, as directed. This condition shall take effect upon the Board's
jesuance of the Consent Order and will continue so long a1s Respandent remalns’
ficensed In New York State.
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.1 stipulate that my falfure to comply with any conditions at the Gonsent Order shall
constitute misconduct as defined by New York Education Law § 6530(29).

i agrae&;at. If 1 am charged with professional miscanduct in future, this Consent

Agreement and the Consent Order shall be admitted Info evidgnce in that procesding.

{ ask the Board to adopt this Consent Agresment.

} understand that if the Boand does not adopt this Consent Agrasment, nore of is terms
shall bind me or constitute an adshission of any of the acts of alleged misconduct; this Consent ~

Agreement shall not be used sgainst me in any way and shall be kept In strict confidence; and
the Board's denizl shall be without prejudice o the perding disciplinary proceeding end the
Board's fina} determination pursuant to New York Public Health Law,

1 agree that, § the Board adopls this Consent Agresment, the Ghalr of the Board shall
lssue @ Corisent Order In accordance with is ferms. | agree that the Consent Order shali take
effect upon its lssuanca by the Board, either by maling of & copy of tha Consent Order by first
class szl to me st the address in this Consent Agreement, of ta my altomsy by cerfified mall,
or upon facsimile or emall transmission to me or my atfomey, whichever is first. The Consent
Order, this Consent Agreement, and sl attached Exhibits shall be public documents, wilh only’
patient identities, i any, redacted. As public documents, they may be posted on the Depariment
of Health websfie. ‘

~

i stipulate that the praposed sanclion snd Consent Osder are authorized by New York -
Public Hesith Law §§ 230 and 230-3, &nd that the Board and OPMC have the requistts powers
to carvy out all included terms. § ask the Board to adopt this Consent Agreement of iy own free
will and not tnder duress, compulsion or restraint. In consideration of the value to me of the
Board's adoption of this Consent Agreement, allowing me to rescive this matier without the
various fisks and burdens of a hesring on the meits, | knowingly waive my right to contast the
Consent Order for which § spply, sdministratively andlor judicially, | sgree to bs bound by the
ConsentOfdsr andlaskﬁ!at!he Bozd adopt this Congant Agreement.

lundersta.ndand agreeﬁmtmeaamayformebepammmemrem OPMC, and

the Chair of the Board sach retain complete discrefion elther to enter Into the proposad Consent.

Agresment and Consent Order, based upon my application, o to decline'to do so. | further
understand and agres that o prior or separats wrien or oral communication can fmif that

{ discrstion.
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DATED: /2.3

2014
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STATE OF NEW YORK DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH
STATE BOARD FOR PROFESSIONAL MEDICAL CONDUCT

IN THE MATTER S STATEMENT
- oF
AARON SCOTT GOLDFEIN, M.D. . ©  CHARGES
CO-10-034866.4 |

AARON BCOTT GOLDFEIN, M.D., Respondent, was suthorized o practics medicine In

| New York state on June 18, 2004, bylheissmnca oﬂicensenmnberzazaazbymeﬂewwrk

State Education Depariment.
' FACTUAL ALLEGATIONS

A.  Onorabout February 5, 2010, the Stals of Michigan, Dapartment Of Commurity
Health Bureau Of Health Professions, Board Of Medicine, Disdiplinary Subcommities,
(hereinafter “Michigan Board of Medicing"), by Consent Order, (hereinafier “Michigan Board of
Medicine Order’), placed Respondent on Probation for a period of one (1) year and fined
Respondent $1,000, In the Michigen Board of Medicine Order, Respondent agreed that the
Michigan Beard of Madicine would treat the allegations set forth in the Adminisirative Complaint
of March 3, 2008, 2s true, The Adminisirative Complalnt of March 3, 2009, alleged that
Respondent engaged In conduct that consisted of negligenca or fallurs 1o exercise due care,
including negligent delesation to or supervision of employees os other thdhiduals, whether or
not Injury resuite, that Respondent's copduct évidenced a fack of good maral character, and that
Respondent's conduct evidenced obiaining, possessing, or sliempting to obtzin or possess a

sdministering drugs for other ﬂiaﬁ!awm!d!a?gmtbormefapm purposes,

8. On orabout Masch 10, zﬂw,ﬁieStateOfmcﬁgan Dopariment Of Commtinily
Heatth, Bureau Of Health Pmm&mmmmq.mmm&mm
thereinafier Michigan Board of Phamacy) by Consant Order, (hmﬁter‘kﬁdﬁgan Boad of
Pharmacy Order”), placed Respondent on Probation for a period of one (1) year and fined
Respondent $2,500, In the Michigan Board of Pharmacy Order, Respondant agresd tatthe
wmmmﬂmwmwﬁmmmmmmammmmmm
Masch 3, 2008, as true. The Administrative Complaint of March 3, 2009, alleged that on July 18,

2008, Respondant prescribed 80 mg of Oxycontin to two (2) patients prior to examining them

controfied substance or drug without lawful suthorlty, andjor sefling, prescribing, giving away, or -




and that on Seplember 24, 2008, Respondent prescribed 80 mg of Oxycontin for a patient
whosg medical record Iacked cinical evidence t support the uss of the medication.

C.  .The condict reslling In the Michigan Board of Medidine disciplinary action

agalnst Respondent would constitute misconduct undsr the laws of New York Stale, pursuant fo’

the following sections of New York State law:

1. NewYork Edumﬁon Law Sec.6530(3) {nealigence un mara lhan one mton) o

__ 2. NewYorkEducation Law Sec. 6530(20) (moral urifitriess). - SR

D.  The conduct festifting in the Michigan Bﬁfﬂ af Phama’cy discipinary action

enainst Respondent would consiitute misconduct under the laws of New York State, pursuant 1N

the following seciions of Nsw York Staie faw:

1. New York Education Law Sec, 6530(3) (neglioence on more than one occasion).
2. New York Educafion Law Sec, 6530(32) (f2llure to malntain a racond),

SPECIFICATIONS
FIRST AND SECOND SPECIFICATIONS

Respandent viclated New York Education Law Sec. 6530{9){b) by having besn found
quiity of Improper professional misconduct by 2 duly authorized professional disciplinary agency
of ancther state where the conduct upon which the finding was basad would, i commitiad In
Mew York state, constiute professional miscontuct undertha laws of New York stats, In that
Pefitioner eharges:

1. The facis In Paragraphs A and C.
2. The facts in Paragrephs B amwd D,

THIRD AND FOURTH SPECIFICATIONS

Respondent viclated New York Education Law Sec. 8530{8)(d) by having disciplinary
sction taken by a duly authorized professional disciglinary sgency ofammer state, whers ine
conduct resulting in ths disciplinary action would, if committed In New York siate, constitute
professional misconduct under the Izwe of New York stzte, In that Pelitioner chamges:

»

3.  ThefacsinParagraphs Aend C.

RIS




4. Thefactsin Paragraphs Band D.

| bATED, fRMstaty-£ 2011

ny, New York

REDACTED
PETERD,VANBUREN

- Degitty "

Bursau of Professlonal Medical Conduct
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EXHIBIT *B"

REQUIREMENTS FOR CLOS!NG A MEDICAL PRACTICE FOLLOWING A
REVOCATION SURRENDER OR SUSPENSION (of six months or more)
OF A MEDICAL LICENSE

1. Respondent shalt immiedialely cease and desist from engaging | m the prastice of
medicine (in New York State) in accordance with the terms of the Order. _In addition,

-1~ “Respondent shafl efraln from providing an op:nion asio pmfsssibria! P*’a‘-"'!Ga orits

application and from represenung himself as belng eligible to practics medicine.

2, Respondent shall have delivered, lo OPMC at Riverview Center, Suite 355, 150
Broadway, Albany, NY 12204, Respondent’s original license fo practice medicine in New
York State and current biennial ragastraﬂon within five (5) days of the eﬁecﬂve dale of
the Order.

3. Respondent shall within fiftesn (15) days of the Order, noufy all patients of the cessation
of his madical praciice and wilt refer all patients fo another ficensed practicing physician
for their continued care, as appropriate.

»

Respondent shafl make arrangements for the transfer and maintenance of the medical -
records of his patients. Wilhin hirty days of the effective date of the Order, Respondent
shall notify OPMC of these arrangements including the appropriate and acceplable
contact person's name, address, and telephone number who shall hiave access to these
records. Originel records shall be retained for st least six years after the fast date of
service rendered Lo a patient or, in the case of 2 minor, for al least six years afler the last
date of service or three years afier the patient reaches the age of majority, whichever
time period is longer. Records shall be maintained in a safe and secure place that is
reasonizbly accessible io former patients. The arrangements shall include provisions to-
ensure thal the information on the record s kepl confidential and made available only to
authorized persons. When a palient and/or hisiher authorized representative requesis a
copy of the patient’s medicat record, or requests thal the criginal medical record be
forwarded fo another health care provxder, a copy of the record shall be promplly
provided or forwarded al a reasonable cost lo the patient {not lo exceed savenly-five
cents per page.) Radxographlc, sonographic, and fike materials shall he pravided at
cosl. A qualified person shall fot be denled access {o patient information solely because
of histher inabifity to pay. .

5. In the event that Respondant holds a Drug Enfarcement Agency {DEA) cerlificate for
New Yark State, Respondent shalt, within fijteen {15) days of the Ordar’s effective date,
advise the DEA, in writing, of the licensure action and shall surrender hisfher DEA
controlled subslance privileges for New York State to the DEA. Respandent shall
promptly sufrender any unused DEA #222 U.S. Official Order Forms Schedules 1 and 2
for New York Stale to the DEA. All sibmissions.to the DEA shall be addressed lo
- Diversion Pragram Manager, New York Fleld Division, U.S. Drug Enforcement
Administration, 99 Tenth Avenue, New York, NY 10011,

8. Respondent shalt within fifieen {15) days of the Order's effeclive date, relum any unused
New York State official prescription forms to the Bureau of Narcotic Enforcement, New
Yark State Depariment of Health at Riverview Cenler, 150 Broadway, Albany, NY 12204

Respondent shalt cause all prescriplion pads bearing hisiher name to be destroyed. if

o e m——— sl B




8.

no: other licensee is providing services at Respondents practice location, all medications
shall be praperly d:sposed of,

Respandent shall not share, occupy or use office space in whlch another ficenses
provides health care services. Respondent shall cause all signs 1o be removed within
fifleen {15} days and stop all adverlisements, professional listings whether in telephone
directorles, on the intemet or stherwise, professional statlonery or billings by which
hisher efigibility lo practice is represented.

Respondent shall not eharge, recelve or share any fee or distribution of dividends for |

| professional-services rendered (by Responderit or others) while bamed ffom s engagmg n

10.

the practice of medicine. Respondent miay be compensated for the reasonable value of
services lawfully rendersd and__d:sbursements incurred on a patient’s behalf prior o tha

~ effective dale of this Grder.

i Respondent is 2 sharsholder in any professional service corporation organized to
engage In the practice of medicine and If Respondent's license is revoked, 'surendered
or suspended for a term of six months or more under the terms of this Order,
Respondent shall divest himselifherself of all Ainanclal interest in the professional
services corporalion in accordance with New York Business Corporalion Law. Such
divestiture shall occur within ninety {80) days of the effective date of this Order. If
Respondent is the sole shareholderin a profeS*ssonal services corporation, (he
corparation mus! be dissolved or sold within ninety {90} days of the effective date of this
Order.

Fallure to comply with the above direclives may result in a civil penalty or further criminal
penalties as may be aulhorized pursuant §o the Jaw, Under Section 6512 of the
Educatlon Law lLis a Class E Felony, punishable by imprisonment of up to 4 years, to
praclice the profession of medicine when such professiona! licanse has been
suspended, révoked or annilled. Such punishment is in addition to the penallies for
professional misconduct set forth in Section 230-a of the Pubfic Health Law, which
includes fines of up lo $10,000 for each specification of charges of which Respondent is
found guily and may include revocalion of a suspended license;

m————y - i

- m e e a dum e ————— 4

[P

- e a0

- ok



 STATE OF MICHIGAN
'DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY HEALTH
BUREAU OF HEALTH PROFESSIONS
' BOARD OF MEDICINE -~
DISCIPLINARY SU_B_CQM_MITTEE |

In the Matter of

.AARON SCOTT GOLDFEIN MD..
Licerise Number: 43-01-082782, \ S CONSENT ORDER AND STIPULAT!ON

i

| C;ONsENT,ORD.E,R |

WHEREAS, an Admmlstraﬁve Complalnt hereafter Complamt was tssued

on March 3, 2009 charging Aaron Scott Goldfem M b, hereafter Respondent with havmg

violated sect:ons 16221 (a) 16221 (b)(w) and 16221 (c) (1\1) ofthe Pubhc Health Code 1 978 v

PA 368, as amended MCL 333, 1101 et seg and -

WHEREAS Respondent nelther admlts nor demes the a]legatzons offaot and
law as set forth in the Complaint dated March 3, 2009 but agrees that the stclp]mary
Subcommrttee of the M]ch]gan Board of Medlcme hereaﬁer stmphnary Subcomm:ﬁee |
shall freat the affegatrons as trus, which finding shaH have the same force and eﬁ‘ect for

purposes of this Consent Order as if evidence and argument were presented in support of

the allegatlons and

WHEREAS the Disciplinary Subcommitiee has rewewed the Stipulation and,
based upon the matters asserted therein, agrees that the public interest is best served by

resolution of the outstanding Complaint; now therefore,

File Number: 43-08-110537




—~

TS -HE‘REBY FOUND that the allegeﬁons of fact and law set forth in'the
Compfaznt are true for the purposes of thts Consent Order and constltute wotatfons of -

secttons 16221(a) 16221 (b)(vi), and 16221(c)(w) of the Pubhc Health Code upr
“Accordingly, |

LS HEREBY ORDERED that for the aforesard vxo!atlons of the Pubhc
Heatth Code, Respondent is placed an PROBATEON for a penod of ONE YEAR,

commencnng onthe effectwe date of thls Order The terms of probatlon shall be as follows:

1. CONT!NUiNG EDUCATION Respondent shall
successfully comp!ete a mihimum of one -course of
continuing education accepted by the Michigan Board
of Medicine, hereafter Board, in each of the following
areas: a) pain management and b) prescription drug
addiction in patients. This continuing education shall be
completed during the probatlonary period and shall not
apply In compuiing ‘Respondent’s current contmumg
educatfon requrrements for hoense renewal o

Respondent shaﬂ seek and obtaxn pre—approval of the'
continuing educat;on from the Chairperson of the Board
or the Chalrperson s deetgnee Respondent shall mail
requests. for pre-approval of the continuing education
and proof of the successful completion ofthe continuing
education to the Depariment of Community Health,

Bureau of Health Profesmons hereafter Department at
the address set forth betow .

2. POLICIES AN D PROCEDURES W:thm 30 days of the
effective date of this Order, Respondent shall submitto
the Department policie’s and procedures for screenlng'
pat;ents and prescribing medications, for review by the
Chairperson of the. Board, or the Chairperson’s
designee, at the addres.s set forth below. In the event
any changes to the policies and’ procedures are
recommended, Respondent shall submit revised




policies and procedures in accordence wrth the
: recommended changes :

3. COMPLIANCE WITH THE PUBL!C HEALTH CODE |
: Respondent shall complywrth all apphcable provisions -
of the' Public Hea}th Code and ruies promulgated

‘thereunder

4, - :REPORTINGPROCEDURE Respondentshalldrrect"

all communications required by the terms of this . _' o

~ Order, except fines, to: Department of Community
~ Health, Bureau of Health Professions, Sanction
Momtormg, PO Box 30670 Lansmg, M1 48909 '

The trmeiy frlmg of all rnformatron relatmg to thrs Order
shall be Respondent's’ responsrbmty, and failure tofile
said information within the time limitations herein
provided shall be deemed a. violation of an order of the

Drscrplrnary Subcommtttee

5. _COSTS Reepondent shall be solely responsrble for
‘payment of all costsvmcurred in oomplymg wrth the

tenns of thrs Order

iT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Respondent sheﬂ be automatrcaﬂy
discharged from probatron et the end ofthe probatronary perrod PROV]DED Respondent

has complred with the terms of this Order and' has not ,-vrolate'd th_e Public Health Code. -

ITIS FURTHER ORDERED that for the ’aforesaid violations of the Public
Health Code, Respondent is FINED in the amount of $1,000.00 fo be paid to the State of

Michigan within six months from the effective date of this Order,

IT IS FURTHER O’RDERE'DAthat_the fine shall be mailed to the“Department
of Gommunity Health, Bureau of Health Professions, :Sancﬁo’n_ Monitoring, P.0. Box

30185, Lansing, MI 48909. The fine shall be paid by check or money order made payeb‘le




to the State of Michigan, and the check or money order shall clearly display the file number

43-08-110537.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that in the event Respondent v1olates any

provision of this order, and n‘ such vxolatlon is deemed to constltute an mdependent :
"'v10!atlon of the Public Health Code or the rules promulgated thereunder the Dlsmplmary""""’ T

.Subcommlttee may proceed to take dlsolplmary actlon pursuant to 1996 AACS R

338 1632 and sectron 16221 (h) of the Publ[o Health Code ugr

ITIS FURTHER ORDERED that this order shall be effectlve 30 days trom the

date signed by the DlSClplmaW Subcommlttee as set forth betow

'.Dated 2 5 QGM o : a

| STIPULAT.ION |

1. Respondent neither admits nor denies the allegations of fact and law

set forth in the Complaint dated March -3,: 2009, but agrees that the Disciplinary

- Subcommitiee shall treat the allegations as true, which finding shall have the same force

- and effect for purposes of this Congent Order as if evidence and ergtlments were

presented in support thereof.




g and such wrtnesses as Reepondent- may desrre to .present_,a defense to sa__rd oharges. S

2. | Respondent understands and mtends that by srgmng this Strpu{atron
Resporident is warvmg the right, pursuant fo the Publrc Health Code the rules promulgated
thereunder and the Admmlstratrve Procedures Act of 1 969 1969 PA 306 as amended;
MCL 24 201 _et_se_q to requrre the Department to prove the charges set forth in the

Complamt by presentatron of evrdence and iegai authonty and to appear wrth an attorney .

3. Factors taken ilntodoonsideraﬁon in :_the 'for_rn_ulation._o‘f _the.within
Consent Order are as fo_llows:
Buring a complrance conference held in the matter, -
Respondent indicated that he was not aware of the high
potential for abuse for the -medications’ he  was
prescribing. Respondent mdrcated thathe has changed
his prescribing practices and more actively screens
patients for whom he prescrrbes narcotic medicatiohs.
Further, Respondent indicated that he has significantly

reduced the number of patients to whom he prescnbee
narcotics. : _ .

4, Rrohard Bumey, M D, a member of the Board who supporte this
proposal, and the Department’s representatlve are both free fo dlscuss this matterw;th the
Disciplinary Subcommiitee and recommend acceptance ot the resoiutton set forth in the

foregoing Consent Order

5. The forego}ng Consent Orderis approved asto form.an‘d substance by
Respondent and the Depa'rtmentand may be entered as the final order of the Disciplinary

Subcommittee in said cause:




6. The foregoing proposal is conditioned uﬁon acceptance by the
Disciplinary Subcommittee, Respondent and the Dep'ariment expressly reserving the right

to further proceedings A’wiihbut prejudice ’s,hoi;fd the. Con'_slent Ord_er be rejected.

AGREEDTOBY: -~ AGREED TO BY: | o |
ALYUL S . ',—(A/’ﬂmb(’&%ﬁf/;]' |

Melanie B. Brim, Director ~ =~ " - Aaron Scott Goldfem M D.;

Bureau of Health Professions Respondent - ‘

Department of Communlty Health ‘

Dated: At , Dated:_ // " 2/5“ ]/Gt?g

Veerald A Snfderman (P25156)
Attorney for Respondent

This is the last and finaf page of a Consent Order énd Sh ulatxon in the matter of Aaron Scott Goldfein, M.D.,
File Number 43-08-110537, before the Disciplinary Subcommrttee of the’ Mlchlgan Board of Medtcme
COHSISU]‘JQ of six pages, this page included. )
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